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CORRESPONDENCE MEMORANDUM 
 
 

DATE:  March 6, 2010     
  
TO:  Employee Trust Funds Board 
  Wisconsin Retirement Board 
  Teachers Retirement Board 
   
FROM: David H. Nispel, General Counsel 
      
SUBJECT: Open Meetings Update—Attorney General Opinion on 
  E-mail Communication  
 
This memo is for informational purposes only.  No Board action is required. 
 
This memorandum is presented to inform Board members about a January 25, 2010, 
opinion by Attorney General J. B. Van Hollen.  Board members are encouraged to place the 
attached copy of the opinion in their Governance Manual behind the tab labeled “Open 
Meetings and Public Records Law.” 
 
The Attorney General’s opinion concerns the meeting practices of a five-member 
governmental body created by the City of Racine to review loan applications submitted by 
city residents for improvements to property located in the city.  The governmental body 
engaged in the practice of taking votes by email outside the course of regularly- scheduled 
meetings and without sufficient notice to the public.  
 
The three principal components of the Attorney General’s opinion are: 

  
1. A governmental body must give advance public notice of each of its meetings and must 

conduct all of its business in open session unless a specific exemption applies. 
 
2. A governmental body almost certainly violates the open meetings law if it takes binding 

collective action by aggregating the email votes of its members using a method that 
allows no opportunity for public observation of the process. 

 
3. A meeting notice that merely identified “Old Business” as a subject did not reasonably 

apprise members of the public that the governmental body would use that subject 
description to reaffirm an email vote conducted previously without any prior public notice 
of the email vote. 
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